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NOTICE TO ALL VENDORS 
The Contract Documents for the above-referenced Project are modified as set forth in this Addendum.   
The original Contract Documents and any previously issued addenda remain in full force and effect, 
except as modified by this Addendum, which is hereby made part of the Contract Documents.  Vendor 
shall take this Addendum into consideration when preparing and submitting a bid, and shall acknowledge 
receipt of this Addendum in the space provided on the Proposal Form. 
 
BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE 
 

The bid submittal deadline remains the same and is not changed by this Addendum.  
 
1.0 – SPECIFICATIONS 
Item Section No. Description of Change 

1.1 1.2E LCCC has a block of contiguous 835 DID numbers from 
Ironton Telephone. 

   
   

 
2.0 – DRAWINGS-N/A 
Item Drawing No. Description of Change 

2.1   
2.2   
2.3   

 
3.0 – QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
The following questions and answers are provided as a matter of information to clarify issues raised about 
the Contract Documents.  To the extent that changes to the Contract Documents are required based on 
the questions received, the Contract Documents have been modified as noted above in the Specifications 
and Drawings sections of this Addendum. 
Item Questions and Answers 

3.1 Question:  Can you please clarify the estimated number of users/licenses that 
will be required for this project? All I have is what is listed below from the RFP 
and we are not necessarily sure if this should be considered a “user count”. To 
ensure we provide you with an accurate response – we just need clarification. 
LIST OF EXISTING EQUIPMENT 

• IP 244 
• Analog 464 
• Digital 174 
• Voice mail boxes 975 
• DID Lines 958 

Answer:  Craft your proposal to cover 1000 users. 
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3.2 Question: How many phone users and call center agents are at the Donley 
Center location? 
Answer:  Phone users (50) & call center agents (2) 

3.3 Question:   How many IDF’s are at Donley Center location?  
Answer:  (7) & (1) MDF 

3.4 Question:  How many 24 and 48 port switches are required at each IDF at the 
Donley Center location? 
Answer:  (1) 48 port switch per IDF & MDF 

3.5 Question:  How many PRI’s are to be supported at the Donley Center location?  
Answer: None, we have layer 3 circuits from PTD. 

3.6 Question: How many concurrent PSTN SIP Trunk sessions are to be supported 
at the Donley Center location?  
Answer: It depends upon the technology and architecture being proposed by 
the vendor. 

3.7 Question:  How many phone users and Call Center agents are at the Morgan 
Center location?  
Answer: Phone users (35) & call center agent (1) 

3.8 Question: How many IDF’s are at Morgan Center location? 
Answer: (2) + (1 MDF) 

3.9 Question: How many 24 and 48 port switches are required at each IDF at the 
Morgan Center location? 
Answer: (1) 48 port switch per IDF & MDF 

3.10 Question: How many PRI’s are to be supported at the Morgan Center location?  
Answer:  None, we have layer 3 circuits from PTD. 

3.11 Question:  How many concurrent PSTN SIP Trunk sessions are to be supported 
at the Morgan Center location? 
Answer:  It depends upon the technology and architecture being proposed by 
the vendor. 

3.12 Question:  How many phone users and Call Center agents are at the Jim 
Thorpe location?  
Answer:  Phone users (8) & call center agents (1) 

3.13 Question: How many IDF’s are at Jim Thorpe location? 
Answer: (0) + (1 MDF) 

3.14 Question: How many 24 and 48 port switches are required at each IDF at the 
Jim Thorpe location?  
Answer: (1) 48 port switch per IDF & MDF 

3.15 Question: How many PRI’s are to be supported at the Jim Thorpe location? 
Answer: None, we have layer 3 circuits from PTD. 

3.16 Question: How many concurrent PSTN SIP Trunk sessions are to be supported 
at the Jim Thorpe location?  
Answer:  It depends upon the technology and architecture being proposed by 
the vendor. 

3.17 Question:  How many phone users and Call Center agents are at the LVIA 
location?  
Answer:   Phone users (5) & call center agents (0) 
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3.18 Question:  How many IDF’s are at LVIA location? 
Answer: (1) * Mini Rack collocated at site supervisor’s office. 

3.19 Question: How many 24 and 48 port switches are required at each IDF at the 
LVIA location?  
Answer: (1) 24 port switch per IDF & MDF 

3.20 Question:  How many PRI’s are to be supported at the LVIA location? 
Answer: None, we have a cable model from RCN. 

3.21 Question: How many concurrent PSTN SIP Trunk sessions are to be supported 
at the LVIA location?  
Answer: It depends upon the technology and architecture being proposed by 
the vendor. 

3.22 Question: How many phone users and Call Center agents are at the 
Schnecksville location?  
Answer:  Phone users (700) & call center agents (30) 

3.23 Question: How many IDF’s are at Schnecksville location?  
Answer: (16) + (1 MDF) 

3.24 Question: How many 24 and 48 port switches are required at each IDF at the 
Schnecksville location? 
Answer:  (2) 48 port switches per IDF & MDF 

3.25 Question: How many PRI’s are to be supported at the Schnecksville location? 
Answer: (2) plus we have layer 3 circuits from PTD. 

3.26 Question: How many concurrent PSTN SIP Trunk sessions are to be supported 
at the Schnecksville location? 
Answer: It depends upon the technology and architecture being proposed by 
the vendor. 

3.27 Question:  Please advise what level of SLA the College is looking for? 
Answer:  24 X 365, 4 hour response time 99.9999% uptime 

3.28 Question:  Does the LCCC prefer vendor or manufacturer for support, or does it 
not matter? 
Answer:  It does not matter so long as the SLA is met. 

3.29 Question:  Can you define Voice Management System? 
Answer:  The operating and administrative software systems which run and 
permit administration of the proposed solution along with providing business 
intelligence reports. 

3.30 Question:  Please provide a per site phone count. 
Answer:  Previously addressed in addendum. 

3.31 Question:  Network Infrastructure- Will all switching, core, distribution and 
access layers as defined in the RFP be handled separately and be in place 
before voice project commences? 
Answer:  No 

3.32 Question:  Please define what “continue to function for life and public safety 
purposes” means to LCCC? What is the requirement? (ie. Ability to dial from all 
phones, any other required feature) 
Answer:  The ability to receive a dial tone and make any and all phone calls. 

3.33 Question:  How many circuits and what type, listed per location? 
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Answer:  Previously addressed in addendum. 
3.34 Question:   “Dual IPSIs” Please define what you are looking for here as it 

pertains to the gateways. 
Answer:  We would like a high availability implementation option. (N+1) 

3.35 Question:  PC Based Attendant Console – how many needed? 
Answer:  3 

3.36 Question:  Contact Center Functionality 
1. # of contact centers  
2. How many actual ques needed 
3. # of agents 
4. # of supervisors  

Answer:  5 Supervisors-all other questions addressed previously in addendum. 
3.37 Question:  Call Accounting System-What are your requirements? 

Answer:  Including but not necessarily limited to – Agent performance metrics, 
abandon rates, wait times, call times, IVR metrics, etc. 

3.38 Question:  Section 1.3 Products, subsection B, letter j:   LCCC asks for ask for 
tiered unit pricing however, pg 10 only provides place for totals.   Are you 
looking for a separate documents for this?  We would first need to define the 
appropriate phone model, which requires some discussion around end-user, 
location and usage. 
Answer:  Feel free to attach tiered pricing models for the end user devices 
and/or end user client software/app offerings. 

3.39 Question:  List of Existing Equipment: 
1. Please provide site-by-site breakdown of the location of the 

equipment. 
Answer:  We are not going to provide this, as what we have is not necessarily, 
what we need going forward.  Vendors are encouraged to submit architectures 
and BOM lists that they feel will best meet LCCC needs in consideration of the 
RFP contents. 

2. Do all analogs currently go back to a central location or 
distributed between buildings? If between buildings, please 
provide breakdown (bldg. by bldg.) of analogs. 

Answer:  All POTS lines on main campus terminate in a telco room within the 
Student Services Center (SSC) lower level.  There are similar single DEMARC 
locations for POTS lines at all other LCCC facilities.  The college is not opposed 
to solutions, which provide digital to analog converters for meeting this function 
need in whole or part. 

3.40 Question:  Please explain in detail what LCCC’s 10-year growth model is so that 
we can tailor the proposal to fit. 
Answer: Assume 3% CAGR.  Regardless, the proposed solution must have the 
option of greater scale-ability. 

3.41 Question:  How many individual users would need a PC based attendant 
console? Each license costs additional and we want to keep costs as low as 
possible for LCCC. 
Answer:  Previously addressed in addendum. 
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3.42 Question:  What specific Contact Center functionality is 1) required and 2) 
optional? 
Answer:  Previously addressed in addendum. 

3.43 Question:  Under Ancillary Equipment – Speech Auto-Attendant – how would 
you define “speech auto-attendant?” We’re unsure exactly what you’re looking 
for. 
Answer:  Integrated IVR with speech recognition. In addition, the ability to offer 
callback assist so instead of waiting on hold, the system can initiate a callback 
to evenly shape our call volume across business hours and improve customer 
service levels. 

3.44 Question:  Under Ancillary Equipment – Conferencing - is video 1) required or 2) 
optional (so audio only), and what scale should this support? 
Answer:  Video conferencing is optional. 

3.45 Question:  How many individual users would need a smartphone application? 
Each license costs additional and we want to keep costs as low as possible for 
LCCC. 
Answer:  Assume 25 initial licenses with the option to purchase more noted as 
tiered pricing. 

3.46 Question:  Phone Type – when using the word “wireless”, are you referring to a 
cordless handset, a wireless desk phone (using wifi), or a DECT cordless phone 
with base? 
Answer:  Wireless - Any end-user phone device that does not have a wired 
connection to the handset while in use. 

3.47 Question:  Wall Mounted Telephone – will these be analog phones or IP 
phones? 
Answer:  Depends on the application and architecture of your proposal. 

3.48 Question:  Operator’s Console – would you prefer an actual phone set with 
sidecars, or a software driven PC based attendant console? 
Answer:  The college is open to receive proposals for either functionality 
delivery scenario. 

3.49 Question:  Do the analog (464 listed) and digital stations (174 listed) still need to 
be supported or will they all be migrating to IP? Do they all have network wires 
at those locations? Are all of those ports at the same campus? 
Answer:  Our expectation is that all proposals will be comprehensive and 
include all end-user handsets needed.  We will not be reusing any of the 
existing end-user handsets.  

3.50 Question:  Can LCCC provide hard requirements for Trunks with quantities 
desired at each location (SIP, T1, PRI, etc.) 
Answer:  No 

3.51 Question:  Can LCCC provide additional detail in regards to how many users 
will require voicemail features? 
Answer:  All users require VM 

3.52 Question:   Can LCCC provide a count of how many users will utilize UC 
features? 
Answer:  All users 

3.53 Question:  Can LCCC provide additional information in regards to usage of UC, 
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for example: How many users that will utilize UC features who also use 
Microsoft Outlook as an email client? 
Answer:  No.  Also, note we are a G-Suite shop, with very limited use of 
Outlook. 

3.54 Question:    Is UC faxing required? 
Answer:  As apropos. 

3.55 Question:   Is advanced conferencing required (scheduled, Ad Hoc or dedicated 
bridges for end-users or video enabled conferencing)?  If yes, can you provide 
estimate requirements such as average size of conference, how many 
simultaneous conferences (audio and or Video enabled conferences)? 
Answer:  Yes, as we do not have this feature currently, future usage metrics are 
unknown at this time. 

3.56 Question:   How many attendant consoles are required for this deployment? 
Answer:  Previously addressed in addendum. 

3.57 Question:   Will a college wide Auto Attendant be required? 
Answer:  Yes 

3.58 Question:  How many contact center agents are required? 
Answer:  Previously addressed in addendum. 

3.59 Question:   How many contact center agents require fax routing? 
Answer:  None 

3.60 Question:  How many contact center agents require email routing? 
Answer:  All 

3.61 Question:   Will LCCC provide servers (either physical or virtual)?  If virtual, 
which hypervisors are utilized and if there are any plans to use advanced 
functions like high availability? 
Answer:  No, vendor proposals must be comprehensive including all 
infrastructure required to deploy the proposed solution.  

3.62 Question:  Can detailed network diagram(s) be provided? 
Answer:  No, due to cyber-security policy. 

3.63 Question:  Please provide LCCC’s recommended software ongoing upgrade 
requirements. 
Answer:  LCCC expects regular updates to occur on all production systems to 
ensure services are maintained in a SOGR.  

3.64 Question:  To size survivability on a per location basis, we will need to 
understand the number of users at each location and if these are analog or IP 
based users?  Can this be provided?  
Answer:  Previously addressed in addendum.  All end-users desk/work phone 
locations will have IP based access. 

3.65 Question:  Can you please supply your Sourcewell Account Number so I can 
price accordingly for the Mitel Solution? 
Answer:  46888 

3.66 Question:  Scope of Work under Requirements 1.2 (B) Interview LCCC 
management etc. Before Proposal(s) are submitted? 
Answer:  Interviews would be conducted after submittal not before. 

3.67 Question:  Scope of Work under Requirements F. Platform must continue to 
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function in case of WAN Failure? Is local trunks available for calling out and 911 
capability at each remote location? 
Answer:  No 

3.68 Question:  Under 1.4 and 1.5 Locations and existing equipment, what is the 
breakdown of each device at each location? Example Main Location, please 
provide the number of device(s) at this location and type requested for sizing 
and license purposes. 
Answer:  Previously addressed in addendum. 

3.69 Question:  Please provide the WiFi AP’s and Controllers current in use or being 
deployed. 
Answer:  LCCC uses Aruba. 

3.70 Question:  Confirmation this is NOT Prevailing Wage project. 
Answer:  Confirmed 

3.71 Question:  Can you please provide the breakdown of these phones per site (as 
this will have an impact on the overall design of the solution)? 
Answer:  Previously addressed in addendum. 

3.72 Question:  What types of analog phones do you have and where?  
a. And, will you be replacing these with IP phones?   

i. If so, will you be running the network cabling to the endpoint 
or will that be on the vendor?  

b. Lastly, how many analog devices will remain analog? 
Answer:  Fax at MFC devices, courtesy and Public Safety Phones.   These are 
dispersed around LCCC campus locations. 

a. No & N/A 
b. 50% of the existing analog lines will remain as such. 

3.73 Question:  Can you please provide a breakdown of how many of these types of 
phones will go at each location? 
Answer:  No, LCCC will decide based on the options provided in the vendor’s 
proposals. 

3.74 Question:  How is the school faxing today?   
a. On average, how many faxes are sent each month per location?   
b. Does the school fax over POTS?   

i. If so, how many POTS lines are dedicated for faxing per 
site? 

Answer:  Via MFC and desktop fax machines 
a. Unknown 
b. Yes in part & varies 

3.75 Question:  How many concurrent calls does the school have the ability to make 
today (please provide peak and off-peak season call detail reports)?  

a. How many will it require moving forward? 
Answer:  Theoretically 800+ concurrent voice connections. LCCC will not be 
releasing our call detail reports. 

a. Unknown 
3.76 Question:  On average, how many minutes does LCCC consume monthly?  

Answer:  Question is not specific enough to answer. 
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3.77 Question:  How many SIP Trunks are required? 
Answer:  Will vary based upon proposed design architectures. 

3.78 Question:  Who is the SIP Carrier and is LCCC under contract terms? 
Answer:  Ironton & PTD, Yes. 

3.79 Question:  Where are data centers? 
Answer:  Main Campus Schnecksville. We also have limited hosting capabilities 
at our Allentown location. 

3.80 Question:  What email platform is used? 
Answer:  G-Suite 

3.81 Question:  What site is designated as “Primary” and what site is “Backup?” 
Answer:  Schnecksville Site is Main, Donley Site is Backup  

3.82 Question:  What phone set type is preferred? We have four (4) different models 
ranging from “courtesy area” to Basic, Standard and Executive. Please provide 
a breakdown of quantities, set types and wall-mounting needs. 
Answer:  Please refer to the RFP and prior Q&A responses.   We request tiered 
pricing options and will decide on which phone types and quantities later in this 
program life cycle. 

3.83 Question:  Are there any conference room units needed? 
Answer:  Yes 

3.84 Question:  Any headset requirements? 
Answer:  We would welcome options for headsets being included in responding 
proposals. 

3.85 Question:  Do any facilities need overhead paging? 
Answer:  Not within the scope of this program. 

3.86 Question:  Is a VMware or Hyper-V Virtual environment available to deploy 
Unified Communications platforms? 
Answer:  Yes, but proposals should be comprehensive and not dependent upon 
LCCC provided virtual machines. 

3.87 Question:  Are there any requirements for an Auto-Attendant? 
Answer:  Yes 

3.88 Question:  What type of conferencing is requested? (ie – audio, video, or both) 
and how many concurrent participants on a conference bridge? 
Answer:  Audio - Yes, video, not required but we would welcome that included 
as an option for our consideration.  Conference calling demands are unknown 
at this time. 

3.89 Question:   Do any users require mobility features such as smartphone 
applications, softphones? 
Answer:  Yes 

3.90 Question:  Please also provide breakdown of Quantities of users and phone 
sets per location so we can align with Phase 1, 2, and 3 payment schedule 
Answer:  Previously addressed in addendum. 

3.91 Question:  Is Mass Notification for emergency management required? 
Answer:  No 

3.92 Question:  Any Contact Center requirements for Audio or Multimedia (email, 
web chat, SMS)? 
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Answer:  Email Yes, Web chat No, but if the platform you propose has this as 
an option, we might consider it, SMS -  No, but if the platform you propose has 
this as an option, we might consider it. 

3.93 Question:  Are there any ‘eFax’ requirements? 
Answer:  No, but if the platform you propose has this as an option, we might 
consider it. 

3.94 Question:   Is LCCC currently enrolled with Sourcewell or willing to sign up for 
no-charge? 
Answer:  Previously addressed in addendum. 

3.95 Question:  Is LCCC judging proposals based on most responsive or just lowest 
bid? 
Answer:  As indicated in proposal on Page 3, paragraph 2. 

3.96 Question:    Is LCCC open to an alternative solution and proposal that is Cloud 
based? 
Answer:  Yes 

 
END OF ADDENDUM 


